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§475 Innocent Owner, Lack of Knowledge
or Willful Blindness



Supreme Court upholds forfeiture of family car even though wife was unaware husband used it to meet prostitute. (475) Petitioner was a joint owner of an automobile in which her husband engaged in sexual activity with a prostitute. The automobile was forfeited as a public nuisance with no offset for her interest, notwithstanding her lack of knowledge of her husband’s activity. In a 5-4 opinion written by Chief Justice Rehnquist, the Supreme Court affirmed, citing a “long and unbroken” line of cases holding “that an owner’s interest in property may be forfeited by reason of the use to which the property is put even though the owner did not know that it was to be put to such use.” The majority ruled that the “innocent owner defense” mentioned in Calero-Toledo v. Pearson Yacht Leasing Co., 416 U.S. 663 (1974) was obiter dictum, pointing out that Calero-Toledo itself concluded that “the innocence of the owner of property subject to forfeiture has almost uniformly been rejected as a defense.” Justices Thomas and Ginsburg joined the opinion and wrote separate concurrences. Justices Stevens, Kennedy, Souter and Breyer dissented. Bennis v. Michigan, 516 U.S. 442, 116 S.Ct. 994 (1996).xe "Bennis v. Michigan, 516 U.S. 442, 116 S.Ct. 994 (1996)."
Supreme Court holds lack of knowledge that home was pur​chased with drug proceeds is de​fense to forfei​ture. (475) In a plurality opinion announced by Jus​tice Stevens, the Supreme Court concluded that an owner's lack of knowledge of the fact that her home had been purchased with the proceeds of ille​gal drug transactions constituted a defense to a forfei​ture pro​ceeding under the statute. In 1982 respon​dent re​ceived $240,000 from her boyfriend to pur​chase a home. In 1989 the government filed an in rem action against the parcel of land on which the home was lo​cated. There was probable cause to be​lieve that the funds used to buy the house were pro​ceeds of illegal drug trafficking, but re​spondent swore she had no knowledge of its origins. The plurality concluded that the "innocent owner" protection is not limited to bona fide purchasers. In addition, the gov​ernment is not the owner of a property before forfeiture has been decreed. The two concur​ring Jus​tices con​cluded that the result was correct because the "rela​tion back" principle recited in 21 U.S.C. §881(h) is the fa​miliar, traditional one and the term "owner" in §881(a)(6) bears its ordinary meaning. U.S. v. A Parcel of Land, Buildings, Appurtenances and Improve​ments, Known as 92 Buena Vista Avenue, 507 U.S. 111 (1993).xe "U.S. v. A Parcel of Land, Buildings, Appurtenances and Improve​ments, Known as 92 Buena Vista Avenue, 507 U.S. 111 (1993)."
1st Circuit holds district court misapplied burden of proof requiring Government to prove claimants knew or consented to drug dealing. (475) Following drug trafficking convictions of three tavern employees, the Government filed a forfeiture action against the building where the tavern was located, alleging that the property had been used, or was intended for use, to distribute narcotics, and thus was forfeitable under 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(7). After a bench trial, the district court entered judgment for claimants, concluding they were innocent owners. The 1st Circuit reversed holding that the record, taken in the light most favorable to the claimants, contains insufficient evidence to permit a reasonable finder of fact to conclude that the claimants had proved a lack of knowledge or consent. Furthermore, the court found that the district court "gave lip service to the accepted burden of proof, and effectively inverted that burden," erroneously implying that the affirmative defense would carry the day unless the Government demonstrated that claimants knew or consented to the drug sales. U.S. v. 15 Bosworth Street, 2001 WL 2076 (1st Cir. 2001).

1st Circuit affirms denial of relief from forfei​ture judgment under Fed. R. Civ. P. 60(b). (475) The gov​ernment's motion for summary judgment in a forfeiture case was granted after claimant failed to op​pose the motion. After fi​nal judgment was entered, claimant filed a motion for relief from judgment under Fed. R. Civ. P. 60(b)(6). The 1st Cir​cuit affirmed the denial of the mo​tion, since claimant did not have a potentially meritori​ous defense. Claimant did not deny the facts set forth in a DEA agent's affidavit, which es​tablished that claimant's officers and employees used the property to distribute cocaine. The court also rejected claimant's argument for application of Rule 60(b)(6) based on the gross neglect of its former coun​sel. Senior Circuit Judge Aldrich dissented, arguing that claimant came "very close" to having a potentially meritori​ous de​fense, since all non-operating club members of claimant were appar​ently unaware of the offi​cers' miscon​duct. U.S. v. Parcel of Land with Building, Appurte​nances and Improvements, Known as Woburn City Athletic Club, 928 F.2d 1 (1st Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. Parcel of Land with Building, Appurte​nances and Improvements, Known as Woburn City Athletic Club, 928 F.2d 1 (1st Cir. 1991)."
1st Circuit affirms that wife established own​ership interest in property through a resulting trust. (475) The government brought a civil forfeiture action against a family's residence whose title was held solely by the husband. The wife inter​vened, claiming an interest in the property as an innocent owner. The 1st Circuit found no clear error in the district court's de​termination that the wife had established an own​ership interest in the property through a resulting trust, i.e., a verbal agree​ment between claimant and her husband entered into at the time of the property's purchase in which he agreed to pay the $8,000 down payment, she agreed to pay the mortgage of $8000, and they both agreed that the prop​erty would be held jointly. Claimant offered her own testi​mony, the testimony of her daughters and a stack of can​celed money orders which she had used to pay the mortgage in full. This was ample evi​dence to support the district court's decision. Judge Campbell dissented, believing that the court did not properly apply state law. U.S. v. One Par​cel of Prop​erty with Buildings, Appurte​nances and Improve​ments Known as 116 Emerson Street, Lo​cated in the City of Providence, Rhode Island, 942 F.2d 74 (1st Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. One Par​cel of Prop​erty with Buildings, Appurte​nances and Improve​ments Known as 116 Emerson Street, Lo​cated in the City of Providence, Rhode Island, 942 F.2d 74 (1st Cir. 1991)."
1st Circuit affirms that wife was unaware of husband's drug activities in their home. (475) Claimant's husband sold drugs to a DEA agent. When agents entered their residence, claimant and her daughter were in the living room. Packages of heroin were discovered hidden in the microwave oven in the kitchen. In a civil for​feiture action against the resi​dence, claimant asserted the in​nocent owner defense. The govern​ment contended that since defen​dant was in charge of cook​ing and clean​ing, she must have known of the heroin hidden in the microwave. Nonetheless, the 1st Circuit affirmed the district court's de​termination that claimant was an innocent owner. First, the government's own witness, a DEA agent, testi​fied that claimant was never a suspect in her husband's drug activities. Second, the hus​band admitted that the drugs and money were his. Third, claimant testified that she would never have permitted drug activity in her home. Fourth, she testified that she had been out all morning on the day of the search and seizure and that she had just returned when the police arrived. Finally, the government had the op​portunity to cross-examine claimant extensively on this issue, and still the district court chose to believe claimant. U.S. v. One Par​cel of Prop​erty with Buildings, Appurte​nances and Improve​ments Known as 116 Emerson Street, Lo​cated in the City of Providence, Rhode Island, 942 F.2d 74 (1st Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. One Par​cel of Prop​erty with Buildings, Appurte​nances and Improve​ments Known as 116 Emerson Street, Lo​cated in the City of Providence, Rhode Island, 942 F.2d 74 (1st Cir. 1991)."
2nd Circuit finds mother knew or deliberately avoided knowing about son's marijuana. (475) The government sought to forfeit land owned by claimant and used by claimant's son to grow marijuana. The Second Circuit rejected claim​ant's innocent owner defense, finding that claimant knew or deliber​ately closed her eyes to her son's marijuana growing activities. Although the property was not claimant's primary residence, she visited the farm once a week to cook, clean and do her son's laundry. She admitted going into cabinets and drawers where police later discovered marijuana and drug paraphernalia, but denied seeing those items. A total of 1362 marijuana plants were found. The house was used to store seeds, guns and marijuana, the barn was used to strip and dry plants and house pots where the marijuana grew, and garden hoses extended from the buildings to the marijuana fields for irrigation. Moreover, claimant knew her son had previously been arrested for growing marijuana and knew he had a problem with it. U.S. v. Milbrand, 58 F.3d 891 (2d Cir. 1995).xe "U.S. v. Milbrand, 58 F.3d 891 (2d Cir. 1995)."
2nd Circuit rejects innocent owner defense of "hands on" owner. (475) Claimant, his wife, and son jointly owned an automotive salvage and repair shop. The government sought the forfeiture of the business and its land based on the business's trafficking in VIN-altered auto parts and money laundering activities. The district court found that claimant's wife was an innocent owner, and claimant argued that he also was an innocent owner. The Second Circuit disagreed, finding that claimant was fully aware of the illegal transactions occurring at the business. Although he reduced his involvement in the business after an illness, even after the illness he regularly worked at the business at least three days a week, and he was present in the yard when deliveries of stolen vehicles and parts were made. Although the owners testified that claimant was not aware of any illegal transactions, claimant's wife also testified that he was a "hands on" owner who liked to be in the yard overseeing operations. U.S. v. All Assets of G.P.S. Automotive Corp., 66 F.3d 483 (2d Cir. 1995).xe "U.S. v. All Assets of G.P.S. Automotive Corp., 66 F.3d 483 (2d Cir. 1995)."
2nd Circuit holds claimants were innocent owners of one of two adjacent parcels. (475) Claimants purchased two adjacent parcels of property at the same time. One parcel included a multi-family residence, and the other included a garage and apartment. A driveway ran between the two parcels, but they were otherwise contiguous, with a chain-link fence circling the perimeter of the entire property. Narcotics activity took place on both parcels; but claimants only knew about the drugs on the parcel containing the residence. The 2nd Circuit held that property separately described in the local land records, regardless of whether it is conveyed to an owner in a single instrument, should be considered separate for forfeiture purposes, except where it is unreasonable or physically impossible to treat the property separately. The district court correctly determined that the two parcels were separate lots. The fact that claimants used the garage for the residence on the other property was not relevant, nor was the fact that the entire property was only 1/4 acre in size. The district court's finding that claimants were unaware of the drug activity in the garage, and thus were innocent owners as to that parcel alone, was not erroneous. U.S. v. Two Parcels of Property Located at 19 and 25 Castle Street, 31 F.3d 35 (2d Cir. 1994).xe "U.S. v. Two Parcels of Property Located at 19 and 25 Castle Street, 31 F.3d 35 (2d Cir. 1994)."
2nd Circuit rules parents knew of children’s drugs but did not take all reasonable steps to prevent activities at residence. (475) Claim​ants lived on a multi-family residence with their four children, all of whom had severe narcotics problems and had been convicted of narcotics crimes. The property was used to facilitate the crimes of possession with intent to distribute, in violation of 21 U.S.C. §841, and possession by a person previously convicted of a narcotics offense, in violation of 21 U.S.C. §844. The district court found that claimants did not know of the §841 violations, but they knew of the §844 violation. The 2nd Circuit held that claimants were not innocent owners, because they did not take all reasonable steps to prevent the §844 violations. Claimants did press their children to stop using drugs and took steps to remove the children from the neighborhood. However, they did not conduct searches of the residence. This was significant in light of claimants' arrest, and subsequent release, after police found drugs in the home. Although claimants were fearful of retaliation from drug dealers in the neighborhood, it would have been reasonable for claimants to ask police to take action with respect to drug activity in their own home. Finally, claimants could have issued their children an ultimatum to comply with the law or move out. U.S. v. Two Parcels of Property Located at 19 and 25 Castle Street, 31 F.3d 35 (2d Cir. 1994).xe "U.S. v. Two Parcels of Property Located at 19 and 25 Castle Street, 31 F.3d 35 (2d Cir. 1994)."
2nd Circuit finds that claimants knew of drug traf​ficking on their property. (475) The 2nd Cir​cuit upheld the forfeiture of real property, finding that there was probable cause and that claimants were not innocent own​ers. Due to the extraordinary volume of drug trans​actions occurring on, nearby, or directly related to the premises (66 drug-re​lated ar​rests over a three-year period), the trial court cor​rectly found probable cause that the property had been used to facilitate drug trafficking. Further, the court did not err in rejecting claimants' improbable testi​mony that they had no knowledge of drug-traf​ficking on their prop​erty and had not con​sented to it, particularly given their own drug-related arrests on the site and their presence during arrests for various other drug trans​actions. A claimant who has knowl​edge that his property is being used for drug-related purposes must take reasonable steps to pre​vent this illicit use in order to show a lack of consent. Claimants failed to show that they took those steps. That similar drug activity may have pervaded the neighborhood did not excuse them. U.S. v. All Right, Title, and In​terest in Real Property and Appurte​nances Thereto Known as 785 St. Nicholas Ave., 983 F.2d 396 (2d Cir. 1993).xe "U.S. v. All Right, Title, and In​terest in Real Property and Appurte​nances Thereto Known as 785 St. Nicholas Ave., 983 F.2d 396 (2d Cir. 1993)."
2nd Circuit rejects innocent owner de​fense where drug paraphernalia was found in plain sight in shared bedroom. (475) A forfeiture action was brought against claimant's residence based upon her hus​band's drug activities. The 2nd Circuit re​jected claimant's innocent owner defense since drugs and drug paraphernalia were found throughout their shared bedroom and some drug paraphernalia was found in plain sight. Even if claimant's husband had exclu​sive control of the dresser, closet and jewelry box where drugs were found, the fact that a sifter, grinder, sheets of paper, and funnel were in plain view on top of the dresser belied claimant's ignorance of drug activities in the bedroom. Her purported ig​norance was at best "willful blindness," and at worst perjuri​ous. The abundance and visibility of the nar​cotics evidence contradicted any contention that claimant took all reasonable steps to prevent the ille​gal use of the property. Judge Van Graafeiland dis​sented. U.S. v. One Par​cel of Property, Located at 755 Forest Road, 985 F.2d 70 (2d Cir. 1993).xe "U.S. v. One Par​cel of Property, Located at 755 Forest Road, 985 F.2d 70 (2d Cir. 1993)."
2nd Circuit finds no error in exclusion of ex​pert's tes​timony as to defendant's state of mind concerning sons' drug activ​ity. (475) Claimant's sons were arrested on numerous drug charges for drug activity which took place in an apartment house owned by claimant. In a forfeiture proceeding against the apartment house, de​fendant asserted the innocent owner defense. The 2nd Circuit upheld the district court's denial of a psychia​trist's testimony as to claimant's state of mind con​cerning her sons' drug activities. The expert was not dis​closed on the pretrial preparation order and had spo​ken to claimant for the first time for about 10 minutes on the morning of his proffered testi​mony. The district court ex​cluded the testi​mony on the grounds that there was no claim that claimant suffered from a mental defect and that the ex​pert would be invading the province of the jury. This ruling was not an abuse of discretion. The sole issue at trial was whether claimant had knowledge of her sons' drug activities, a simple question for which the jury needed no help. U.S. v. One Parcel of Property Located at 31-33 York Street, Hart​ford, Connecticut, 930 F.2d 139 (2d Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Property Located at 31-33 York Street, Hart​ford, Connecticut, 930 F.2d 139 (2d Cir. 1991)."
2nd Circuit holds that innocent owner must establish either lack of knowledge or lack of consent. (475) The 2nd Circuit held that a claimant may avoid forfeiture by establishing ei​ther that he had no knowledge of the nar​cotics activity, or if he had knowledge, that he did not consent to it. To show lack of consent, a claimant must prove that upon learning of the illegal activity being con​ducted on the property, he or she did all that reasonably could be expected to prevent it. In this case, the jury's conclusion that the owner failed to meet this burden was supported by the evi​dence. Although the police called the presi​dent of the corporation several times and left messages regarding the drug activity in the corpora​tion's apartment build​ing, the president never returned any of the calls, and took no steps to curb the drug activity. Once the building was raided and the corporation ad​mitted it knew of the drug activity, it instructed the building superintendent not to accept rent from the ten​ants who were arrested. A jury could reasonably con​clude that the corporation either knew of the narcotics activity prior to the raid and took no steps to stop it, or that corporation's response after learning of the raid was inadequate. U.S. v. 141st Street Corpo​ration, 911 F.2d 870 (2d Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. 141st Street Corpo​ration, 911 F.2d 870 (2d Cir. 1990)."
2nd Circuit imputes superintendent's knowl​edge of drug ac​tivity in building to corporate owner. (475) Claimant was the corporate owner of an apartment building seized for drug trafficking. There was evidence that the building superin​tendent had accepted bribes from drug dealers to keep the elevators in the building running, and that he charged several thousand dollars per month to lease apart​ments speci​fically for drug dealing purposes. Claimant asserted the innocent owner defense, arguing that it was improper to impute the su​perintendent's knowledge of the drug traffick​ing to it be​cause the superintendent was acting adversely to claimant when he accepted bribes and charged the exor​bitant rents. The 2nd Circuit rejected this argument, since the superin​tendent's actions were adverse to the corporation "only in the sense that his actions con​tributed to the imputation of knowledge" to claimant. Claimant failed to present evidence that it did not share in the superintendent's profits. More​over, there was evidence that the president of claimant was aware of the drug trafficking. U.S. v. 141st Street Corporation, 911 F.2d 870 (2d Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. 141st Street Corporation, 911 F.2d 870 (2d Cir. 1990)."
2nd Circuit rejects innocent owner defense where claimant had a prior conviction for selling narcotics at the property. (475) The claimant argued that forfeiture of the property was unwarranted because he was un​aware of his brother's narcotics activity. The 2nd Cir​cuit rejected the argument, ruling that the claimant "cannot disclaim his own involve​ment in nar​cotic sales at the . . . property." The court ruled that the claimant's 1987 state conviction for selling nar​cotics from the property "is more than ade​quate to establish probable cause to con​nect the property with illicit narcotics transactions." U.S. v. All Right, Title & Interest in Real Property & Building Known as 303 W. 116th Street, New York, New York, 901 F.2d 288 (2d Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. All Right, Title & Interest in Real Property & Building Known as 303 W. 116th Street, New York, New York, 901 F.2d 288 (2d Cir. 1990)."
2nd Circuit upholds summary judgment against "innocent spouse." (475) The govern​ment sought to for​feit a single family home owned by the claimant and her husband, based upon the husband's drug trafficking. In her claim, the claimant denied any knowledge of her husband's drug traf​ficking activity. In the course of a deposition, however, she in​voked her 5th Amendment privilege against self incrimina​tion in response to virtu​ally every question re​garding drug activities alleged to have taken place in her home. The district court granted summary judgment for the gov​ernment, stating that there was "simply no pro​bative evi​dence from which a reasonable jury could find for the claimant, given the co​caine found throughout the house, the gun and other drug paraphernalia found throughout the house, the statements of the credible informant that the claimant was fully aware of her hus​band's drug trafficking, and the claimant's own calm response to the search of her home and the seizure of the aforementioned contra​band." The 2nd Circuit affirmed the judge's ruling, stat​ing that there was no "genuine issue for trial."  U.S. v. One Parcel of Prop​erty located at 15 Black Ledge Drive, Marlborough, Conn., 897 F.2d 97 (2d Cir. 1990). xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Prop​erty located at 15 Black Ledge Drive, Marlborough, Conn., 897 F.2d 97 (2d Cir. 1990). "
3rd Circuit adopts subjective standard for willful blindness. (475) The government sought forfeiture under 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(4) of a Rolls Royce that a criminal defense attorney received from a client to repay $16,000 the attorney had paid to cover the cost of a lavish party given to celebrate the client's acquittal. Under 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(4)(C), no owner's interest in a conveyance shall be forfeited by an act committed without the "knowledge, consent, or willful blindness of the owner." The 3rd Circuit adopted a subjective standard for willful blindness. A person is willfully blind under §881(a)(4)(C) when he or she is aware of a high probability that the conveyance was used to facilitate a drug transaction, but fails to take reasonable affirmative measures to find out whether the conveyance was in fact so used. Thus, willful blindness could not be found if the attorney established that he did not know that the Rolls Royce was used for drug trafficking, or if he was lacking in intelligence or negligent or mistaken. Since it was undisputed that the attorney took no steps to investigate, the principal issue on remand was whether the attorney had actual knowledge of high probability that the Rolls Royce was used in drug trafficking. U.S. v. One 1973 Rolls Royce, V.I.N. SRH-16266, 43 F.3d 794 (3d Cir. 1994).xe "U.S. v. One 1973 Rolls Royce, V.I.N. SRH-16266, 43 F.3d 794 (3d Cir. 1994)."
3rd Circuit says affidavit raised issue of material fact that precluded summary judgment. (475) The government brought a civil forfeiture proceeding against claimant's residence under 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(7). There​after, claimant was convicted of drug charges but the jury could not agree on criminal forfeiture of the property. The government then filed a motion for summary judgment in the civil forfeiture action, relying on evidence that claimant stored cocaine on the property, and testimony from several individuals that they had purchased cocaine from claimant on the property. Claimant presented a sworn affidavit which stated that any cocaine hidden on the property was for his personal use and that the only time he distributed cocaine was when he traded it in a restaurant for some champagne. The 3rd Circuit held that claimant's affidavit raised a genuine issue of material fact that precluded summary judgment. U.S. v. Premises Known as RR #1, Box 224, Dalton, 14 F.3d 864 (3d Cir. 1994).xe "U.S. v. Premises Known as RR #1, Box 224, Dalton, 14 F.3d 864 (3d Cir. 1994)."
3rd Circuit finds claimant's bare denial of knowledge sufficient to withstand sum​mary judgment. (475) One claimant and her husband owned a residence and a food mar​ket as tenants by the entireties. The husband also owned a club in which a second claimant had an interest by virtue of his contribution to the down payment. In a forfeiture action against the three properties based on the husband's drug dealings, claimants asserted the innocent owner defense. The 3rd Circuit held that the claimants' bare denial of knowl​edge was sufficient to create a genuine issue of fact and thus summary judgment was in​appropriate. A rational jury could believe the second claimant's testimony that he had no knowledge of the husband's drug dealings at the club. Similarly, a rational jury could be​lieve the wife's testimony that she had no knowledge of her husband's drug dealing from their house or market. No evidence was tendered placing the wife at her residence or at the scene of any drug-related transaction. Judge Seitz concurred and dissented. U.S. v. Premises Known as 717 South Woodward Street, 2 F.3d 529 (3d Cir. 1993). xe "U.S. v. Premises Known as 717 South Woodward Street, 2 F.3d 529 (3d Cir. 1993). "
4th Circuit finds innocent owner evidence inadequate to rebut probable cause showing. (475) The government sought civil forfeiture of a building alleged to be a “major center of drug-related and other criminal activities in the downtown” area of Jacksonville, North Carolina. The evidence that the building was used for criminal purposes included: (1) Hearsay testimony of three drug convicts who sold drugs in or around the building and saw sales conducted in front of the owner; (2) 202 criminal incident reports from the local police department regarding criminal activity on the premises, including 180 instances of drug dealing, 83 drug seizures, 65 undercover purchases, and 29 occasions on which the crimes involved the building owner or his family; and (3) four eyewitness observations by detectives of drug activity in the building. In rebuttal, claimant introduced: (a) a statement from the owner’s former lawyer asserting that the owner maintained his innocence, (b) a “bare assertion of innocent ownership [by the owner] in response to an interrogatory,” (c) affidavits from two of the three convicts relied upon by government recanting their prior statements, and (d) an unsworn statement from another person claiming the owner had a poor memory. The Fourth Circuit found claimant’s submissions, even if taken as true, to be insufficient to establish an innocent owner defense in the face of the government’s “overwhelming” evidence. U.S. v. Willingham, 139 F.3d 896 (4th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished).xe "U.S. v. Willingham, 139 F.3d 896 (4th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished)."
5th Circuit holds that "owner" refers to owner at time of forfeiture proceeding, not at time drug offense is committed. (475) The government brought a forfeiture action under 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(7) against property owned by claimant. Claimant admitted as part of a guilty plea that in February 1988 he had sold drugs from the defendant property. However, on this date, the property was owned by his parents, who allegedly were unaware of his drug activities. They conveyed the property to him in May 1988. The 5th Circuit held that the term "owner" for purposes of the innocent owner defense, refers to the person who owned the property at the time of the forfeiture proceedings, not the person who owned the property at the time it was used to commit an illegal act. Although §881(h) provides that the government's interest relates back to the date of the act giving rise to the forfeiture, title does not vest in the government until the date of the forfeiture decree. U.S. v. One Parcel of Land in the Name of Ezekiel Mikell, 33 F.3d 11 (5th Cir. 1994).xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Land in the Name of Ezekiel Mikell, 33 F.3d 11 (5th Cir. 1994)."
5th Circuit remands for determination on whether spouse is innocent owner. (475) The government estab​lished probable cause that claimant's house, which she owned with her hus​band, had been used by her husband to distribute and store drugs. The 5th Circuit re​manded the case for the district court to de​termine whether the illegal acts were con​ducted without her "knowledge or consent." The government pre​sented no evidence that claimant was involved in any drug related ac​tivity, or that she participated any drug trans​actions between her hus​band and a govern​ment informant. Claimant's denials, which were not contradicted by the gov​ernment, raised a genuine issue regarding her knowledge and consent. Since the government met its burden of show​ing proba​ble cause, after re​mand, claimant would have to prove by a pre​ponderance of the evidence that the drug ac​tivity in her home took place without her knowledge or con​sent. U.S. v. Lot 9, Block 2 of Donnybrook Place, Harris County, Texas, 919 F.2d 994 (5th Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. Lot 9, Block 2 of Donnybrook Place, Harris County, Texas, 919 F.2d 994 (5th Cir. 1990)."
6th Circuit upholds reliance on claimant's knowledge of illegal activities on other properties. (475) The government brought separate forfeiture actions against two parcels of property, one owned by claimant and the other owned by claimant's ex-wife and son. Claimant argued that district court erroneously admitted evidence of his knowledge of illegal activities on the other property, which caused the jury to reject his innocent owner defense. The 6th Circuit found the evidence was properly admitted. The evidence relating to the other property was clearly relevant. Search warrants were executed at both properties on the same day. Claimant was discovered at the other property, as were numerous items useful for narcotics trafficking. This information made it more likely that claimant knew of the illegal activities that took place at his property. U.S. v. Real Property Known and Numbered as Rural Route 1, Box 137-B, Cutler, Ohio, Box 137-B, Cutler, Ohio, 24 F.3d 845 (6th Cir. 1994).xe "U.S. v. Real Property Known and Numbered as Rural Route 1, Box 137-B, Cutler, Ohio, Box 137-B, Cutler, Ohio, 24 F.3d 845 (6th Cir. 1994)."
6th Circuit relies on criminal convic​tions to pre​clude litigation of forfeitability of property. (475) Claimants had been con​victed of growing marijuana on a 51-acre tract of land. The district court relied on the convictions in granting summary judgment of forfeiture of the property. The 6th Circuit noted that the fact of criminal convic​tion does not necessarily pre​clude litigation of a for​feiture action, but it af​firmed reliance on the doctrine of collateral estoppel on the facts of this case. The owner of the property could not have been convicted had the criminal jury believed that she lacked knowl​edge and did not con​sent to her husband's drug ac​tivities on the property. Her husband's convic​tion also supported forfei​ture of his dower in​terest in the property. U.S. v. Three Tracts of Property Lo​cated on Beaver Creek, 994 F.2d 287 (6th Cir. 1993).xe "U.S. v. Three Tracts of Property Lo​cated on Beaver Creek, 994 F.2d 287 (6th Cir. 1993)."
6th Circuit reverses summary judgment against spouse who denied knowledge of drugs in home. (475) Claimant's husband was convicted of drug of​fenses, and claimant was tried but acquitted. Subse​quently, the govern​ment sought to forfeit the family's mo​bile home and the tract on which it sat, as well as other property owned by the family. The district court granted summary judgment to the government, but the 6th Circuit re​versed with respect to claimant's interest in the parcel. The only evidence tying drug ac​tivity to the home was proof that a bag of marijuana and a jar containing several thou​sand marijuana seeds were found in the mo​bile home. At her crimi​nal trial and in an af​fidavit in the forfeiture action, claimant de​nied knowing that these items were in her home. A reasonable trier of fact could have con​cluded that claimant satisfied the inno​cent-owner defense. U.S. v. Three Tracts of Property Lo​cated on Beaver Creek, 994 F.2d 287 (6th Cir. 1993).xe "U.S. v. Three Tracts of Property Lo​cated on Beaver Creek, 994 F.2d 287 (6th Cir. 1993)."
6th Circuit precludes appeal of summary judgment by claimant who had not denied knowledge under oath. (475) Claimant ap​pealed the district court's summary judgment of forfeitability, arguing that the court im​properly held that he was collaterally estopped from denying forfeitability because of his criminal conviction. The 6th Circuit af​firmed, hold​ing that claimant's failure to tes​tify at his criminal trial or otherwise to deny under oath that he knew of the drug activity on his property pre​cluded his ap​peal. U.S. v. Three Tracts of Property Lo​cated on Beaver Creek, 994 F.2d 287 (6th Cir. 1993).xe "U.S. v. Three Tracts of Property Lo​cated on Beaver Creek, 994 F.2d 287 (6th Cir. 1993)."
6th Circuit reverses summary judgment against spouse who denied knowledge of drugs in home. (475) Claimant's husband was convicted of drug of​fenses, and claimant was tried but acquitted. Subse​quently, the government sought to forfeit the family's mo​bile home and the tract on which it sat, as well as other property owned by the family. The district court granted summary judgment to the government, but the 6th Circuit re​versed with respect to claimant's interest in the parcel. The only evidence tying drug ac​tivity to the home was proof that a bag of marijuana and a jar containing several thou​sand marijuana seeds were found in the mo​bile home. At her crimi​nal trial and in an af​fidavit in the forfeiture action, claimant de​nied knowing that these items were in her home. A reasonable trier of fact could have con​cluded that claimant satisfied the inno​cent-owner defense. U.S. v. Three Tracts of Property Lo​cated on Beaver Creek, 994 F.2d 287 (6th Cir. 1993).xe "U.S. v. Three Tracts of Property Lo​cated on Beaver Creek, 994 F.2d 287 (6th Cir. 1993)."
7th Circuit holds that manager's knowl​edge of drug activities could not be im​puted to corpora​tion. (475) A corporation owned the defendant prop​erty, and three in​dividuals owned stock in the corpo​ration. A husband and wife owned 2/3 of the stock, and their son owned the remaining 1/3. The son's shares were a gift from his parents. The son lived on the property and directed its day-to-day operations while his par​ents lived else​where. Without the knowledge or consent of his parents, the son began engaging in drug transactions on the property in his personal resi​dence. He never used corporate funds to purchase drugs and never put any drug pro​ceeds into the corporation. In a for​feiture ac​tion against the property, the 7th Circuit re​versed a summary judg​ment in favor of the government and held that the corporation was an inno​cent owner. The son's knowledge of his own criminal activity could not be im​puted to the corporation to defeat the corpo​ration's innocent owner defense. Section 881(a)(7) focuses on the claimant's actual knowledge of the illegal ac​tivities, not whether the claimant should have known of the illegal activi​ties. Thus, the son's knowledge of his own illegal activities would not be im​puted to the corporation because the son was dealing drugs to benefit himself, and not the corpora​tion. Judge Pos​ner dissented. U.S. v. One Parcel of Land Located at 7326 Highway 45 North, 965 F.2d 311 (7th Cir. 1992).xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Land Located at 7326 Highway 45 North, Three Lakes, 965 F.2d 311 (7th Cir. 1992)."
8th Circuit rejects innocent owner defense by non-resident owner of drug house. (475) Claimant’s brother was “a large-scale drug dealer operating out of a house [claimant] owned, and … it was obvious to an ordinary person the property was used for drugs, based on the extensive foot traffic and the presence of home-protection devices typically used by large-scale drug dealers.” Claimant did not live in the house but was a frequent visitor, and he admitted that his brother would have left the house had he asked. Accordingly, it was not error for the district court to disbelieve claimant’s denial of knowledge of ongoing drug activity in the house, nor did the district court err in concluding that claimant consented to the illegal use of his property. U.S. v. North 48 Feet of Lots 19 and 20 in Block 8 of M.J. Hammett’s Addition . . . Pine Bluff, Arkansas, 138 F.3d 1268 (8th Cir. 1998).xe "U.S. v. North 48 Feet of Lots 19 and 20 in Block 8 of M.J. Hammett’s Addition . . . Pine Bluff, Arkansas, 138 F.3d 1268 (8th Cir. 1998)."
8th Circuit rules government did not prove corpo​ration's willful blindness of em​ployee's drug deal​ings. (475) The govern​ment sought forfeiture of a Jeep owned by claimant, a family-owned cor​poration, based on drug dealing by Mark, a minority share​holder who used the Jeep as his company car. In grant​ing summary judgment, the dis​trict court re​jected the corporation's innocent owner de​fense, finding that it could not prove the absence of willful blindness. The 8th Cir​cuit ruled that the govern​ment did not prove willful blindness as a matter of law, and re​manded for trial. "Willful blindness involves an owner who deliberately closes his eyes to what otherwise would have been obvious and whose acts or omission show a con​scious purpose to avoid knowing the truth." Here, the record showed that Mark had difficulty with drugs over a period of time and had been treated sev​eral times. He was al​lowed to return to work because the family felt he was no longer using drugs. Family members were monitor​ing Mark's work and atten​dance. Moreover, Mark had a personal car in addi​tion to the Jeep. U.S. v. One 1989 Jeep Wagoneer, 976 F.2d 1172 (8th Cir. 1992).xe "U.S. v. One 1989 Jeep Wagoneer, 976 F.2d 1172 (8th Cir. 1992)."
8th Circuit holds that claimants failed to es​tablish ei​ther of the Calero-Toledo innocent owner defenses. (475) A drug smuggler pur​chased the airplane with drug pro​ceeds and flew it to Belize in 1984 to pick up a load of marijuana. The plane was seized by soldiers in Be​lize. Thereafter, the smug​gler signed over ownership of the plane to the claimants, who reg​istered it in their names and made efforts to recover it from Belize. In 1986, the plane ap​peared in Arkansas with a load of marijuana where it was seized by Customs. The 8th Cir​cuit held that the claimants failed to establish either of the Calero-Toledo innocent owner defenses. They did not prove that the aircraft was stolen or taken from them without their consent, nor did they show that they did all they could to prevent the theft and subsequent misuse. "[M]ere igno​rance is not a valid de​fense to for​feiture." U.S. v. One 1976 Cessna Model 210L Aircraft, 890 F.2d 77 (8th Cir. 1989).xe "U.S. v. One 1976 Cessna Model 210L Aircraft, 890 F.2d 77 (8th Cir. 1989)."
9th Circuit says wife's claim that she had no knowledge of transactions supported inno​cent owner defense. (475) The wife, a co-owner of the residential property, claimed that she had no knowledge of the expeditions to the five banks or that cashier's checks were used in the real estate transactions until a lawyer informed her of this later. The government did not refute the claim, and therefore there was a genuine question as to whether she knew about the illegal transactions. This was enough to come within the statutory innocent owner defense in 18 U.S.C. §981(a)(2). Thus it was error to grant summary judgment against the wife. U.S. v. Real Property 874 Gartel Drive, Walnut, California, 79 F.3d 918 (9th Cir. 1996).xe "U.S. v. Real Property 874 Gartel Drive, Walnut, California, 79 F.3d 918 (9th Cir. 1996)."
9th Circuit says husband's ignorance of the law did not make him an innocent owner. (475) The claimant's husband claimed that he did not know it was against the law to buy cashier's checks for cash in amounts under $10,000. However, to establish a statutory innocent owner defense under 18 U.S.C. §981(a)(2), the claimant must lack know​ledge of the transactions; it is not enough to demonstrate ignorance of the transactions' illegality. Thus, the government was entitled to summary judgment against the husband's share of the property for the structuring violation under 31 U.S.C. §5313 and 5324. U.S. v. Real Property 874 Gartel Drive, Walnut, California, 79 F.3d 918 (9th Cir. 1996).xe "U.S. v. Real Property 874 Gartel Drive, Walnut, California, 79 F.3d 918 (9th Cir. 1996)."
9th Circuit says neither husband nor wife was innocent owner where both made false statements on residential loan application. (475) Uncontroverted evidence indicated that in the loan application, both the husband and wife falsely reported that they had a joint monthly base income of $8,400 from their business, when apparently the business generated only about $600 a month. The Ninth Circuit rejected both claimants' innocent owner defense because both "obviously knew about or were willfully blind to, the false statements in the loan application." See U.S. v. One 1980 Red Ferrari, 827 F.2d 477, 480 (9th Cir. 1987) (claimant cannot avoid know​ledge of illegal activity by "sticking his head in the sand"). U.S. v. Real Property 874 Gartel Drive, Walnut, California, 79 F.3d 918 (9th Cir. 1996).xe "U.S. v. Real Property 874 Gartel Drive, Walnut, California, 79 F.3d 918 (9th Cir. 1996)."
9th Circuit says wife's claim that she had no knowledge of transactions supported innocent owner defense. (475) The wife, a co-owner of the residential property, claimed that she had no knowledge of the expeditions to the five banks or that cashier's checks were used in the real estate transactions until a lawyer informed her of this later. The government did not refute the claim, and therefore there was a genuine question as to whether she knew about the illegal transactions. This was enough to come within the statutory innocent owner defense in 18 U.S.C. §981(a)(2). Thus it was error to grant summary judgment against the wife. U.S. v. Real Property 874 Gartel Drive, Walnut, California, 79 F.3d 918 (9th Cir. 1996).xe "U.S. v. Real Property 874 Gartel Drive, Walnut, California, 79 F.3d 918 (9th Cir. 1996)."
9th Circuit rejects innocent owner de​fense even though owner moved be​fore mari​juana was found. (475) Claimant sepa​rated from the woman with whom he had been living and mov​ed out of the mo​bile home in Au​gust, 1987. The woman contin​ued to live in the mobile home, and the claimant continued to operate a shake mill on the property. On several occa​sions he was al​lowed to use the tele​phone in the mobile home and once or twice, the bathroom. Two years after the claimant had moved out, federal agents executed a search warrant at the mobile home. They found 66 live marijuana plants, equip​ment for a marijuana-growing operation, and vari​ous quantities of pro​cessed marijuana. Based on the claimant's knowl​edge of the smell of marijuana, the board​ed up win​dows, and his visits in​side the mobile home after he had moved out, the 9th Circuit upheld the district court's finding that he was not an "innocent owner." U.S. v. Real Prop​erty Lo​​cated at Section 18, 976 F.2d 515 (9th Cir. 1992).xe "U.S. v. Real Prop​erty Lo​cated at Section 18, 976 F.2d 515 (9th Cir. 1992)."
9th Circuit holds that private investigator was not "innocent owner" of heroin dealer's Fer​rari. (475) The Ferrari was clearly forfeitable prop​erty, traceable to ille​gal heroin activities. The burden is on the claimant to establish a lack of knowledge of the for​feitable nature of the property. Here, the claimant was a private investi​gator who lived with the heroin dealer's lawyer. He had assisted in the preparation of the defense to the heroin and homicide charges, and at one point in the defense of those cases, had gone to Los Ange​les to pick up the Fer​rari and drive it to the San Francisco area. He had in​sured the car in the heroin dealer's name. The district court properly granted summary judgment for the govern​ment. U.S. v. 1980 Red Ferrari, 827 F.2d 477 (9th Cir. 1987).xe "U.S. v. 1980 Red Ferrari, 827 F.2d 477 (9th Cir. 1987)."
10th Circuit finds instructions properly stated innocent owner defense under 18 U.S.C. §981. (475) In this civil forfeiture case, the corporate claimant appealed a verdict of forfeiture against two promissory notes on the ground that the jury instructions improperly told the jury that it could reject an innocent owner defense if the claimant “should have known” of the illegal activity that was the basis of the forfeiture. The court found that the instruction, fairly read, actually instructed the jury that the innocent owner defense pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §981 would fail only if claimant had actual knowledge of the underlying illegality. Accordingly, the appeal was dismissed. U.S. v. 1171 Bandera Road, 166 F.3d 349 (10th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished).xe "U.S. v. 1171 Bandera Road, 166 F.3d 349 (10th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished)."
10th Circuit says genuine issue of fact existed as to wife’s knowledge of husband's illegal activity. (475) Police found cocaine, cash and drug paraphernalia at claimant's home and on business property claimant jointly owned with her husband. Claimant raised an innocent owner defense, but the district court granted summary judgment in favor of the government. The Tenth Circuit reversed, finding a genuine issue as to how much claimant knew about the illegal activity. Claimant's affidavit plausibly character​ized her husband's drug dealing as an outgrowth of his covert infidelity. Also, claimant's inno​cence was supported by her husband's trial testimony, which was proffered by the govern​ment itself in its motion for summary judgment. Claimant's affidavit also claimed that the money was the proceeds from the sale of a jointly owned van, and that she alone used the money. The affidavit did not merely contain assertions of innocence, but a facially plausible account to support her claim. The fact that claimant's hus​band knew of the money and had access to it was not enough to defeat the innocent owner defense. U.S. v. 9844 South Titan Court, Unit 9, Littleton, Colorado, 75 F.3d 1470 (10th Cir. 1996).xe "U.S. v. 9844 South Titan Court, Unit 9, Littleton, Colorado, 75 F.3d 1470 (10th Cir. 1996)."
11th Circuit finds that the phrase “without the knowledge or consent” in the innocent owner defense under 21 U.S.C. Section 881(a)(7) must be read in the disjunctive. (475) After a confidential informant told law enforcement that cocaine was being distributed by one of the owners of the defendant real property and others, an undercover officer and the CI went to the property. The owner’s daughter told the CI that the cocaine was at her residence, so they went to her house and purchased 25 grams of cocaine from her there. Two months later, the CI purchased cocaine from one of the owners at the defendant property. The government then filed an in rem action under 21 U.S.C. Section 881(a)(7), alleging that the property was used to commit or to facilitate the commission of a drug violation. A claim was filed by a co-owner who alleged that she did not have knowledge of the drug sales. The district court found that the government established probable cause that there was a substantial connection between the real property and an illegal narcotics transaction. The district court also found that the claimant had shown she lacked knowledge of the transaction and thus satisfied the “without knowledge” element of the innocent owner defense. However, the claimant did not show the absence of consent to the drug transaction, as she had failed to show that she did everything reasonably possible to prevent the illegal use of the property. Reading the innocent owner defense language “without the knowledge or consent” in the conjunctive, the district court granted the government’s summary judgment motion. The 11th Circuit held that the phrase “without the knowledge or consent” of owner had to be read in the disjunctive. The 11th Circuit reversed and remanded, holding that material fact questions, regarding whether claimants had knowledge of the illegal narcotics activity occurring on the defendant real property, precluded the entry of summary judgment for the government. U.S. v. Cleckler, 2001 WL 1283753 (11th Cir. 2001). 

11th Circuit holds that son of convicted drug dealer in whose name parcels purchased with drug proceeds were titled did not establish innocent owner defense. (475) Government brought civil in rem forfeiture proceedings against two parcels of real property purchased by convicted drug dealer with proceeds of drug transactions. The parcels were titled in the name of convicted drug dealer’s son, who moved to dismiss on ground that action was barred by five-year statute of limitations. District Court granted claimant’s motion to dismiss with prejudice. The 11th Circuit held that (1) government established probable cause that parcels were purchased with proceeds of drug transactions; (2) son did not establish innocent owner defense; and (3) limitations period did not commence running until government discovered connection between drug sales and properties, not on earlier date when properties were titled in names of drug dealer’s family members.  Reversed and remanded. U.S. v. States v. Carrell, 252 F.3d 1193 (11th Cir. 2001).

11th Circuit refuses to impute drug activities of 68% shareholder to corporation. (475) The president and majority shareholder of a family corporation used corporate land to cultivate marijuana. The district court denied the corpor​ation's innocent owner defense to a forfeiture action, finding the shareholder's activities were imputable to the corporation. The Eleventh Circuit reversed, holding that the majority shareholder's activities could not be imputed to the corporation. Knowledge may only be imput​ed when obtained by an agent acting within the scope of his or her employment and for the benefit of the corpor​ation. The corpora​tion here was a legitimate company, operating since its incep​tion as a trout farm. The corporation did not in any way benefit from the drug activity. Also, there was no evidence that the other shareholders or corporate officers were aware of the drug activity. U.S. v. Route 2, Box 472, 136 Acres More or Less, Land Lying and Being in Land Lot 221 of the 18th District, 1st Section, Towns County, Georgia, 60 F.3d 1523 (11th Cir. 1995).xe "U.S. v. Route 2, Box 472, 136 Acres More or Less, Land Lying and Being in Land Lot 221 of the 18th District, 1st Section, Towns County, Georgia, 60 F.3d 1523 (11th Cir. 1995)."
11th Circuit rejects innocent owner defense where transferee knew of illegal activity when he acquired property. (475) Claimant, a criminal defense attorney, received from a client, in satisfaction of a legal fee, a $50,000 promissory note and a mortgage deed on certain real property. The government later brought a civil forfeiture action against the property under 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(7) on the ground that it was used by the client for drug trafficking purposes. The attorney conceded that he knew of his client's illegal activity on the date of the trans​fer. Therefore the Eleventh Circuit held that the attorney was not an innocent owner under §881(a)(7). The knowledge element of the inno​cent owner test refers to knowledge at the time the property is transferred, not at the time of the illegal activity. The lack of consent defense is not available to post-illegal act transferees be​cause it would be absurd to allow transferees with knowledge of the illegal use of the property to claim they were innocent owners simply because they were not on the scene early enough to consent. U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Estate Located at 6640 SW 48th St. Miami, Dade County, Florida, 41 F.3d 1448 (11th Cir. 1995).xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Estate Located at 6640 SW 48th St. Miami, Dade County, Florida, 41 F.3d 1448 (11th Cir. 1995)."
11th Circuit rules that lender had no ac​tual knowledge that drug proceeds were traceable to mortgage property. (475) At the request of a long-time customer, claimant loaned money to a shell corporation as a bridge loan pending the sale of the corpora​tion's sole asset, a residence. The loan was secured by a first mortgage on the property. The undisclosed true owner of the property was a drug dealer, who had purchased the property four years earlier with drug pro​ceeds. In a forfeiture action against the prop​erty, the district court rejected claimant's in​nocent owner defense. The 11th Circuit re​versed, ruling that claimant proved it had no actual knowledge that drug proceeds were traceable to the mort​gaged property. It was uncontradicted that the drug dealer was not known to the claimant and played no role in the mortgage process. He was never a record owner of the property. There was no evi​dence that when the lender made the loan in 1987, it knew that four years earlier a drug dealer purchased the land and constructed the residence with drug proceeds. U.S. v. One Single Family Residence Located at 6960 Miraflores Avenue, 995 F.2d 1558 (11th Cir. 1993).xe "U.S. v. One Single Family Residence Located at 6960 Miraflores Avenue, 995 F.2d 1558 (11th Cir. 1993)."
11th Circuit holds that owner who knew co-owner used drug proceeds to purchase and improve property was not inno​cent owner. (475) Claimant used legitimate funds to jointly purchase and improve with his brother a parcel of real es​tate. The brother used drug proceeds to finance his portion of the expenses. The 11th Circuit found that claimant was not enti​tled to the innocent owner defense. The leg​islative history evinces an intent to forfeit the invest​ments of those who knowingly do busi​ness with drug dealers. "Innocent owners are those who have no knowledge of the illegal activ​ities and who have not consented to the illegal activities. As to a wrongdoer, any amount of the invested proceeds trace​able to drug activities forfeits the entire property," not merely the funds traceable to the illegal activi​ties. How​ever, a claimant who has actual knowledge of the com​mingling of legitimate and drug funds may avoid forfei​ture as an inno​cent owner if the claimant can prove he did everything rea​sonably possible to withdraw the commingled funds or to the dis​pose of the property. U.S. v. One Single Family Residence Located at 15603 85th Avenue North, Lake Park, Palm Beach County, Florida, 933 F.2d 976 (11th Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. One Single Family Residence Located at 15603 85th Avenue North, Lake Park, Palm Beach County, Florida, 933 F.2d 976 (11th Cir. 1991)."
11th Circuit affirms that claimant was inno​cent owner of property used by son to dis​tribute drugs. (475) The 11th Circuit affirmed the district court's determination that claimant was an innocent owner of property which her son used to facilitate the sale of cocaine. The dis​trict court gave credibility to claimant's de​nial of any knowledge of her son's illegal trans​actions on the prop​erty, and found that claimant expressly prohibited any illegal use of the property. In addi​tion, the FBI agent in charge of the investigation acknowl​edged that no con​traband was ever seen on the property, no pur​chase or sale of illegal substances was ever observed on the prop​erty, no search war​rant on the premises was ever ex​ecuted, and no dogs were ever called in to sniff for drugs. The only evidence of drug use was the immu​nized testimony of a witness who claimed to have pur​chased drugs from the son, and informants who spoke to the FBI agent. U.S. v. Real Prop​erty & Improvements Located at 5000 Palmetto Drive, Fort Pierce, St. Lucie County, Florida, 928 F.2d 373 (11th Cir. 1991). xe "U.S. v. Real Prop​erty & Improvements Located at 5000 Palmetto Drive, Fort Pierce, St. Lucie County, Florida, 928  F.2d 373 (11th Cir. 1991). "
11th Circuit finds genuine issue of fact concern​ing claimant's knowledge of hus​band's drug activity. (475) The government brought a civil forfeiture action against prop​erty jointly owned by claimant and her hus​band, which was used by her husband as a drop-off point for co​caine de​liveries. The district court denied claimant's mo​tion for summary judg​ment. The 11th Circuit dis​missed claimant's appeal for lack of jurisdic​tion, but then ruled that if it had ju​risdiction, it would affirm the district court's denial of the summary judg​ment motion. Claimant failed to show there was no is​sue of fact as to her innocent owner status. Defen​dant was present when the police arrived to search the home but elected to leave during the search. The evidence also in​dicated that defendant's husband used the home reg​ularly for illegal drugs. This raised an infer​ence that the claimant was not entirely ignorant of the cir​cumstances sur​rounding her hus​band's ac​tivities. U.S. v. Certain Real and Per​sonal Property Belonging to Ronald Jerome Hayes, 943 F.2d 1292 (11th Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. Certain Real and Per​sonal Property Belonging to Ronald Jerome Hayes, 943 F.2d 1292 (11th Cir. 1991)."
11th Circuit rules yacht owner failed to estab​lish inno​cent owner defense due to suspicious circumstances of purchase. (475) The 11th Circuit held that a yacht owner failed to qualify as an innocent owner in defense of a forfeiture action. To qual​ify as such, the claimant must prove not only that he was uninvolved in and unaware of the drug activity, but that he took all reasonable steps to prevent such use. Here, he failed to do so given the ob​viously suspect na​ture of the buyer's purchase proposal. He failed to ask for identification from the buyer and did not inquire of law enforcement offi​cials or the commu​nity at large re​garding the buyer's reputation. These cir​cumstances im​posed a duty upon him to take measures to en​sure that the yacht would not be used for ille​gal purposes. He failed to discharge that obli​gation. U.S. v. One 1980 Bertram 58 Foot Mo​tor Yacht, 876 F.2d 884 (11th Cir. 1989).xe "U.S. v. One 1980 Bertram 58 Foot Mo​tor Yacht, 876 F.2d 884 (11th Cir. 1989)."
Alabama District Court rejects innocent owner claim of drug dealer’s girlfriend. (475) State police officers stopped an Isuzu Trooper for speeding, smelled marijuana, searched the car, and found eleven grams of marijuana, $2,000 cash, and a handgun. The driver, who was the owner’s boyfriend, was prosecuted in state court and the car was subjected to federal forfeiture. The district court found probable cause for the stop, the search, and the forfeiture of the vehicle. The court also found that the owner failed to establish an innocent owner defense under the objective standard adopted by the Eleventh Circuit in U.S. v. One 1980 Bertram 58’ Motor Yacht, 876 F.2d 884 (11th Cir. 1989). She was unaware of her boyfriend’s use of the car for illegal purposes on this occasion, but was aware of his general involvement in drugs and failed to introduce evidence showing that she took affirmative steps to prevent illegal use of her vehicle. U.S. v. One 1992 Isuzu Trooper, 51 F.Supp.2d 1268 (M.D. Ala. 1999).xe "U.S. v. One 1992 Isuzu Trooper, 51 F.Supp.2d 1268 (M.D. Ala. 1999)."
Florida district court denies government’s motion for summary judgment because under Florida law claimant is no longer a general unsecured creditor on vehicles, his security interest is automatically perfected and he is not required to record if he takes possession of the collateral. (390)(475) King became a perfectly-attached secured creditor when he took possession of the automobiles Federal agents seized a 2003 Lamborghini Murcielago and 2004 Dodge Viper which they believed were purchased by Thomas Bojadzijev and Lisa Clymer through funds traceable to criminal activities. Claimant John Bruce King challenged the Government's action for forfeiture of the automobiles, asserting that he possessed an ownership interest in the automobiles resulting from loan agreements with Bojadzijev and Clymer. Bojadzijev and Clymer had deposited funds derived from a fraud scheme into bank accounts, and withdrew funds from these same accounts to purchase the Lamborghini and Dodge automobiles. King filed a Claim and Answer to the government's action for forfeiture claiming innocent ownership, saying he loaned Bojadzijev $200,000 on February 10, 2006, in exchange for a 100% ownership interest and physical possession of the Lamborghini as security. King and Bojadzijev memorized the agreement in a promissory note, and King's ownership interest was reflected in a title certificate from the State of Florida and a document from State Farm, Bojadzijev's insurance company, recognizing King as an “additional insured.” That same day, King similarly loaned Clymer $35,000 in exchange for a 100% ownership interest and physical possession of the Dodge Viper to hold as security. Bojadzijev and Clymer paid back the loans but King stated that almost immediately thereafter, they asked to borrow another $190,000. King agreed, and the parties executed promissory notes memorializing a loan of $150,000 to Bojadzijev with the Lamborghini as collateral and $40,000 with the Dodge as collateral. The parties agreed that the certificates of title from the previous loans would reflect King's status of a lien holder under the new agreement and to “carry over” King's status as an additional insured from the first set of loans to the second set of loans. The government moved for summary judgment arguing that King presented no evidence that he was a “bona fide purchaser for value.” King filed an affidavit saying he not aware that the automobiles were purchased with funds derived from criminal activities. The government argued that King only became an “owner” when he recorded his security interest six days after he learned that the automobiles were subject for forfeiture, and thus he cannot be considered a bona fide purchaser for value. The court said the government's argument suffered from two flaws. First, under Florida law, a creditor's interest in collateral attaches, and the creditor therefore becomes a secured creditor, upon the execution of a security agreement. At that point, the creditor is no longer a general unsecured creditor, and if he takes possession of the collateral, his security interest is automatically perfected and he is not required to record. King became a perfectly-attached secured creditor when he took possession of the automobiles. He also met the definition of a bailee “owner” under 18 U.S.C. §983(d)(6)(B)(ii) when he took possession of the automobiles. The government next argued that King was not an “innocent owner” because King either knew or had reason to know that the automobiles were subject to forfeiture at the time he gained an ownership interest. King presented only one piece of evidence that supports his claim that he was not aware that the automobiles were subject to forfeiture, on page ten of his affidavit, where he stated that he learned of the seizure warrants for the automobiles only because he was told about them during a call from a federal agent. The government essentially argued that a claimant must always produce, at the summary judgment stage, evidence that corroborates his denial that he knew the property was subject to forfeiture. However, this position is contradicted by the language of 983(d)(3)(A), which only requires the claimant to prove that he “did not know and was reasonably without cause to believe that the property was subject to forfeiture.” Nowhere does the statute require the claimant to investigate whether the property was subject to forfeiture or produce other evidence that negates the possibility of “willful blindness.” Of course, the claimant's failure to investigate may be highly probative circumstantial evidence that he actually knew the property was subject to forfeiture, and the failure to investigate may also defeat the reasonableness of the claimant's belief that the property was not subject to forfeiture. However,  in this case, however, King denies knowing that the automobiles were subject to forfeiture, and the government did not point to any circumstantial evidence in the record that made his denial appear objectively unreasonable, and there is no evidence in the record demonstrating that King should have known that Bojadzijev and Clymer were violating federal laws. Therefore, genuine issues of material fact existed and summary judgment was denied. U.S. v.2003 Lamborghini Murcielago, 2007 WL 4287674 (M.D.Fla. 2007) (December 6, 2007).

Illinois District Court denies standing to contest forfeiture of “marital property.” (475) Illinois state police officers searched claimants’ residence after observing marijuana plants growing near the house. They found marijuana, firearms, currency, and 3,828 gold and silver coins. Federal authorities filed a civil forfeiture action under 21 U.S.C. §§881(a)(6) and 881(a)(7) against the real property, the currency, and the coins. In deposition testimony, the male claimant said his wife, not he, was the owner of the coins. Nonetheless, he claimed an interest in them as marital property. As to the currency, the wife disavowed any specific knowledge of its ownership or origin, but she, too, claimed an interest in the cash as marital property (presumably on the theory that it was her husband’s). The district court found that neither assertion of standing was valid. The Illinois Marriage and Dissolution of Marriage Act, “does not purport to affect property interests during marriage.” Rather, the doctrine of “marital property” does not go into operation until the marriage is dissolved. Consequently, neither spouse could claim standing to contest the forfeiture of property belonging to the other. U.S. v. 47 West 644 Route 38, Maple Park, Illinois, 962 F.Supp. 1081 (N.D. Ill. 1997).xe "U.S. v. 47 West 644 Route 38, Maple Park, Illinois, 962 F.Supp. 1081 (N.D. Ill. 1997)."
Minnesota district court partially denies claims of mortgagees because Minnesota law requires registration of mortgages to perfect security interest, and intervening filing of government’s notice of lis pendens provided notice of purpose of forfeiture action. (475) In November 2002, the defendant obtained a mortgage in the amount of $180,000 from Long Beach Mortgage Corporation, which did not record its mortgage at that time. In September 2003, the defendant was indicted on drug charges stemming from an investigation and search of the property. Later that month, the defendant obtained a second mortgage from Mortgage Group III, LLC, in the amount of $24,711. That mortgage also was not recorded at that time. Prior to issuing the second mortgage, the company’s manager visited the property, but did not notice anything unusual or see any evidence of drug trafficking during the visit. In November 2003, the government filed a complaint for forfeiture and a notice of lis pendens. In December 2003, the second mortgage was filed with the county recorder. The defendant defaulted on the Long Beach mortgage payments and, in December 2003, when Long Beach prepared to foreclose on its mortgage, it discovered that its mortgage had not been recorded, so it did so in April 2004. The two mortgage companies filed claims in the action based on their mortgage agreements. All parties moved for summary judgment. The court held that the Government met its burden of establishing a substantial connection between the property and the defendant's drug felony, shifting the burden to the claimants to refute the government's case by proving that they are innocent owners of the property. The claimants claimed innocent ownership under CAFRA, and Long Beach asserted that its interest in the property is superior to the second mortgagee’s interest. Under the Government's theory, the claimants did not acquire their respective ownership interests in the property until after the lis pendens was filed, when they filed their mortgages with the county, which means they would not qualify as innocent owners. Claimants contend they acquired their respective property interests before the lis pendens was filed (i.e., when the mortgage agreements were executed). Minnesota law establishes that when an interest in land is created, it depends on the type of property at issue. As to one portion of the property, since Long Beach closed on its mortgage in November 2002, and there was no allegation that Brain Gore was engaged in the illegal conduct giving rise to the forfeiture at that time, Long Beach met its burden that it “did not know of the conduct giving rise to” the forfeiture when the parties closed on the mortgage. Although the second mortgagee obtained its property interest after the illegal conduct, there was no dispute that MGIII was a bona fide purchaser for value, and it presented sufficient undisputed evidence to meet its burden of proving that it did not know or have reason to believe that Gore had engaged in illegal conduct. Thus, the court held that each claimant successfully established that it is entitled to the protection of CAFRA's innocent owner defense with respect to the abstract portion of the property, and its interest in that portion of the property was not subject to forfeiture. As to a different portion of the property, however, in Minnesota, the act of registration is the operative act that creates an interest in the land. Because the Government filed the lis pendens before either claimant registered its mortgage, Minnesota law holds that both mortgagees’ interests in the other portion of the property were junior to the Government's interest. Since the notice of lis pendens stated that the purpose of this action is for the forfeiture of the defendant real property, and both claimants registered their mortgages after the notice of lis pendens was filed, they could not prove that they did not know and were reasonably without cause to believe that the property was subject to forfeiture. U.S. v. 392 Lexington Parkway South, St. Paul, Minn., Ramsey County, 386 F.Supp.2d 1062 (D. Minn. 2005) (Sep 7, 2005). 

New York District Court rules buyer of imported goods smuggled without his knowledge is not innocent owner. (475) U.S. Customs seized numerous religious artifacts being smuggled into the U.S. from the Ukraine by an airline stewardess. Thereafter, claimant contested forfeiture of the items on the ground that he had purchased them legally and knew nothing of the seller’s plan to smuggle them through U.S. Customs. The district court rejected this innocent owner argument. The customs forfeiture statute, 19 U.S.C. §1497(a)(1), con​tains no innocent owner defense, and the Supreme Court held in Bennis v. Michigan, 116 S.Ct. 994 (1996), that there is no constitutional innocent owner defense. Such a defense might be available where the goods were stolen from the owner, but that was not the case here. The court also found that claimant had no standing to contest the government’s decision to return the seized artifacts to the Ukraine rather than selling them at public auction. U.S. v. Various Ukranian Artifacts, 1997 WL 793093 (E.D.N.Y. 1997) (not reported in F.Supp.).xe "U.S. v. Various Ukranian Artifacts, 1997 WL 793093 (E.D.N.Y. 1997) (not reported in F.Supp.)."
New York District Court holds matriarch of extended fam​ily was innocent owner of lease​hold. (475) Claimant lived in a small three-bedroom apartment with 17 mem​bers of her extended family. The government instituted forfeiture pro​ceedings against her leasehold interest af​ter claimant's granddaughter was ar​rested for selling crack from the apartment. The District Court for the Eastern District of New York found that claimant was an innocent owner. Claimant repeatedly stated that she had no knowledge of drug activity in the apartment, and that she did not know of any possible illegal uses of the drug paraphernalia recovered from the apartment. When pre​sented with anonymous charges of drug traf​ficking in her household, she promptly investi​gated the allegations, confronting her family members and ques​tioning them about drug ac​tivity. She prohibited mem​bers of the house​hold from having guests while she was away, and insisted that only family members answer the door. This testimony was not incredible. The apartment was not a crack house, and the government established only one drug sale and hidden drug paraphernalia. The granddaugh​ter did forfeit whatever independent interest in the property she might have. U.S. v. The Leasehold Interest in 121 Nos​trand Avenue, Apartment 1-C, Brook​lyn, New York, 760 F.Supp. 1015 (E.D.N.Y. 1991).
